
1

COUNCIL SUMMONS

To Members of the Metropolitan Borough Council

Dear Councillor

You are requested to attend a Meeting of the Sefton Metropolitan Borough Council to 

be held on Thursday 17th May, 2018 at 6.30 pm at the Town Hall, Bootle to 

transact the business set out on the agenda overleaf.

Yours sincerely,

Chief Executive

Town Hall,
Southport

Wednesday 9 May 2018

Please contact Ruth Harrison,Democratic Services Manager 
on 0151 934 2046 or e-mail ruth.harrison@sefton.gov.uk

We endeavour to provide a reasonable number of full agendas, including reports at 
the meeting.  If you wish to ensure that you have a copy to refer to at the meeting, 
please can you print off your own copy of the agenda pack prior to the meeting.

Public Document Pack



2

This page is intentionally left blank.



3

A G E N D A

1.  Apologies for Absence

2.  Declarations of Interest
Members are requested to give notice of any disclosable 
pecuniary interest, which is not already included in their 
Register of Members' Interests and the nature of that interest, 
relating to any item on the agenda in accordance with the 
Members Code of Conduct, before leaving the meeting room 
during the discussion on that particular item
 

3.  Election of Mayor for 2018/19

4.  Election of Deputy Chair for 2018/19

5.  Minutes of Previous Meeting
Minutes of the Ordinary Council Meeting held on 19 April 
2018 
 

(Pages 5 - 18)

6.  Mayor's Communications

7.  Election Results - 3 May 2018
To receive and note the report of the Chief Executive and 
Returning Officer on the results of the Council Elections held 
on 3 May 2018 
 

(Pages 19 - 
24)

8.  Leader of the Council
The Council is requested to note that Councillor Maher was 
appointed as the Leader of the Council by the Council on 21 
May 2015 for a four year term or until such time as the term 
of office expires.
 

9.  Cabinet and Deputy Leader of the Council
Report of the Leader of the Council 
 

(Pages 25 - 
26)

10.  Appointment of Committees and Working Groups 
2018/19

a) To Determine the Size and Membership of 
Committees and Working Groups in accordance with 
the Political Balance Rules

Details of the allocation of Committee Places in 
accordance with the Political Balance Rules and the 
proposed membership of Committees and Working 
Groups for 2018/19 will be circulated prior to the 



4

meeting. 

b) Terms of Reference for Committees and Working 
Groups

Subject to the item above, the Council is requested to 
approve the terms of reference of the Committees and 
Working Groups, as set out in Chapters 6 and 7 of the 
Council Constitution. 

 
11.  Appointment of Representatives on Merseyside Joint 

Authorities 2018/19
Details of the proposed representation on the Merseyside 
Joint Authority bodies for 2018/19 will be circulated prior to 
the meeting. 
 

12.  Dates of Council Meetings 2018/19
To note that the Council meetings scheduled to be held 
during the Municipal Year 2018/19 are as follows:

 19 July 2018
 20 September 2018
 15 November 2018
 24 January 2019
 28 February 2019
 25 April 2019

 



THIS SET OF MINUTES IS NOT SUBJECT TO “CALL-IN”

115

COUNCIL

MEETING HELD AT THE THE ATKINSON, LORD STREET, 
SOUTHPORT

ON  19 APRIL 2018

PRESENT: Councillor Robinson (in the Chair)
Councillors David Barton, Ashton, Atkinson, 
Jo Barton, Bennett, Bliss, Bradshaw, Brodie -
Browne, Burns, Byrom, Carr, Carragher, 
Linda Cluskey, Cummins, Dawson, Dutton, 
Fairclough, Grace, Hardy, Jamieson, Jones, Keith, 
John Kelly, John Joseph Kelly, Lappin, Daniel Lewis, 
Dan T. Lewis, Maher, McGuire, McKinley, Moncur, 
Murphy, Brenda O'Brien, Michael O'Brien, O'Hanlon, 
Page, Pitt, Preece, Pugh, David Pullin, Roche, 
Roscoe, Sayers, Shaw, Spencer, Lynne Thompson, 
Tweed, Veidman, Bill Welsh and Marianne Welsh

104. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Booth, Brennan, 
Dodd, Friel, Gannon, Hands, McCann, McGinnity, Owens, Thomas, Anne 
Thompson, Weavers and Webster.

105. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

No declarations of any disclosable pecuniary interest were received.

106. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING 

RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the Council Meeting held on 1 March 2018 be 
approved as a correct record.

107. MAYOR'S COMMUNICATIONS 

Death of Former Councillor Brian Rimmer

The Mayor reported that former Councillor Brian Rimmer had passed 
away.

Brian Rimmer had served the Norwood Ward from 10 May 1973 until 8 
May 2011 and was Mayor of Sefton in 1985 – 1986.

The Council stood for a one minute silence as a mark of respect for Brian 
Rimmer.

Page 5

Agenda Item 5



COUNCIL - THURSDAY 19TH APRIL, 2018

116

A tribute to Brian Rimmer was made by Councillor Pugh.

Death of Employee David McAllister

The Mayor reported that former employee David McAllister had recently 
passed away.  It was reported that David McAllister from Waterloo, Crosby 
served the Council for 40 years cleansing the streets of Sefton who was 
well thought of by the residents of Sefton and who will be sadly missed.

Death of Jean Kerrigan

The Mayor reported that Jean Kerrigan had recently passed away.  Jean 
Kerrigan was an active Member of the Crosby branch of the Mayors 
Charity Fund since its inception until two months before Jean sadly passed 
away.

The Council stood for a one minute silence as a mark of respect for both 
David McAllister and Jean Kerrigan.

Resignation of Councillors

The Mayor referred to the recent resignation from Councillor Kevin 
Cluskey, Councillor for Ford Ward.  It was reported that Kevin Cluskey had 
served the Council for 32 years representing Litherland Ward and later 
Ford Ward.  On behalf of the Council he extended the Council’s 
appreciation for all his hard work as Ward Councillor, Mayor of Sefton and 
Member of Sefton Council and wished him well for the future.
Councillor Maher, Moncur, Pugh, McKinley, Brodie-Brown, Michael 
O’Brien, Carragher, Dutton and Bennett paid tribute to Councillor Kevin 
Cluskey for his service on the Council. 

Councillor Linda Cluskey thanked Members for their tributes.

The Mayor informed the Council of the resignation from Councillor Andy 
Dams.  On behalf of the Council he extended the Council’s appreciation 
for all his hard work as Ward Councillor for Bludellsands.

Councillors Brodie-Browne, Page, Dan.T.Lewis and Dawson paid tribute 
for his service on the Council. 
 
Councillors Not Seeking Re-Election 

The Mayor reported that this was the last Council meeting before the 
Council Elections on 3 May 2018 and that the following Councillors would 
not be seeking re-election:

Councillors McGuire who had served on Sefton Council for 12 years’ since 
May 2006; 

Councillor Preece, who had 8 years’ service on the Council; and

Page 6

Agenda Item 5



COUNCIL - THURSDAY 19TH APRIL, 2018

117

Councillor Robert Owens and David Owens who had 4 years’ service on 
the Council.

On behalf of the Council, The Mayor expressed thanks to those Members 
for their dedicated service to the people of Sefton and extended his best 
wishes to them for the future.

Councillors Keith and Pugh paid tribute to the service given by Councillor 
McGuire.

Councillor Pugh and Dawson paid tribute to the service given by Councillor 
Preece.

Mayor of Sefton 2018/19

The Mayor reported to the Council that he had been nominated for the 
office of the Mayor of Sefton for a further 2018/19.  He reported that the 
appointment would take place at the Annual Meeting of the Council 
scheduled to take place on 17 May 2018 at the Town Hall, Bootle.  He 
further reported that in respect of that he had made a decision not to hold 
an installation dinner so therefore there would be no requirement to 
adjourn the Annual Meeting.

Mayor of Sefton’s Charity Ball Update

The Mayor reported that the Charity Ball final income figure after 
expenditure had now been completed and that the total of £3,232 was 
raised on the night. The Mayor extended his thanks to everyone who 
contributed or supported in any way to the success of the Charity Ball.

VC Commemorative Paving Stone for Richard George Masters

The Mayor reported that on Saturday 21st April at 11.00am, the VC 
Commemorative Paving Stone for Richard George Masters would take 
place at Southport War Memorial on Lord Street.  He further reported that 
the service would start at 11.00am, with a Parade conducted by 238 
Squadron Royal Logistics Core from 10.30am prior to the service and he 
invited all Members of the Council to attend. 

The Mayor also reported that following the service in Southport, there 
would be an official new road sign unveiling that will see Pelham Drive re-
named to George Masters Drive.

108. MATTERS RAISED BY THE PUBLIC 

The Mayor reported that in accordance with the Council’s Petition Scheme 
set out in Chapter 12 of the Council’s Constitution, two public petitions had 
been submitted for consideration at the Council meeting.

Petition in relation to the future of Southport Market 

Page 7

Agenda Item 5



COUNCIL - THURSDAY 19TH APRIL, 2018

118

The Council heard representations from Mr. Ray Owen of Haydock St. 
Helens who was the lead petitioner in relation to a petition submitted and 
containing 551 signatures which stated:

“We the undersigned believe there should be improved measures 
undertaken at Southport Market/Market Street for both existing and new 
tenants on the grounds of improving the local economy and for our local 
community neighbourhood here.” 

Councillor Atkinson confirmed to Mr. Owen that she would meet with 
Market traders as and when requested to do so.

Members of the Council thanked Mr. Owen for making his representations.

RESOLVED:

That the petition be noted. 

Petition in relation to car parking in the area of Oxford Road, York Road 
and Canterbury Close 

The Council heard representations from Mr. Eric Beninson of Birkdale, 
Southport who was the lead petitioner in relation to a petition submitted 
and containing 510 signatures which stated:

“We the undersigned believe there should be improved measures 
undertaken at the Trafalgar Road Area, namely the Smedley Hydropathic 
Centre for both existing and new neighbours and stakeholders on the 
grounds of improving and maintaining peaceful and harmonious relations 
between all members of the local Community.” 

Councillor Fairclough responded and confirmed that he would be prepared 
to meet with Mr Beninson to explore the issues.

Members of the Council thanked Mr. Beninson for making his 
representations.

RESOLVED:

That the petition be noted. 

109. QUESTIONS RAISED BY MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL 

The Council considered a schedule setting out the written questions 
submitted by:

1. Question submitted by Councillor David Barton to Cabinet Member 
for Regeneration and Skills (Councillor Atkinson)

2. Question submitted by Councillor David Barton to Cabinet Member 
for Regeneration and Skills (Councillor Atkinson)

Page 8

Agenda Item 5



COUNCIL - THURSDAY 19TH APRIL, 2018

119

3. Question submitted by Councillor David Barton to Cabinet Member 
for Planning and Building Control (Councillor Veidman)

4. Question submitted by Councillor David Barton to Cabinet Member 
for Planning and Building Control (Councillor Veidman)

5. Question submitted by Councillor David Barton to Cabinet Member 
for Communities and Housing (Councillor Hardy)

6. Question submitted by Councillor David Barton to Cabinet Member 
for Locality Services (Councillor Fairclough)

7. Question submitted by Councillor David Barton to Cabinet Member 
for Regulatory, Compliance and Corporate Services (Councillor 
Lappin)

8. Question submitted by Councillor David Barton to Cabinet Member 
for Locality Services (Councillor Fairclough)

9. Question submitted by Councillor David Barton to Cabinet Member 
for 
Planning and Building Control (Councillor Veidman)

10. Question submitted by Councillor David Barton to Cabinet Member 
for Regeneration and Skills (Councillor Atkinson)

11. Question submitted by Councillor Bliss to the Cabinet Member for 
Locality Services (Councillor Fairclough)

12. Question submitted by Councillor Bliss to the Leader of the Council 
(Councillor Maher)

13. Question submitted by Councillor Jones to the Cabinet Member for 
Regeneration and Skills (Councillor Atkinson)

14.

15. 

Question submitted by Councillor Jones to the Cabinet Member for 
Regulation, Compliance and Corporate Services (Councillor 
Lappin)

Question submitted by Councillor Shaw to the Cabinet Member 
Leader of the Council (Councillor Maher)

together with responses given.  Supplementary questions 1, 2, 3, 4, 7, 8, 
9, 10 and 15 were responded to by the Leader of the Council, Cabinet 
Members for Regeneration and Skills, Regulatory, Compliance and 
Corporate Services, Communities and Housing and Planning and Building 
Control.

To access the schedule of questions and answers please follow the link 
below:

Page 9

Agenda Item 5



COUNCIL - THURSDAY 19TH APRIL, 2018

120

http://modgov.sefton.gov.uk/moderngov/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=143&
MId=8904&Ver=4  
 
110. CONSTITUTIONAL AND GOVERNANCE UPDATE – MEMBER 

CODE OF CONDUCT / WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY 

The Council considered the report of the Head of Regulation and 
Compliance which provided an update on changes made in relation to 
Constitutional and Governance and the Member Code of Conduct and 
Whistleblowing Policy.

It was moved by Councillor Roche and seconded by Councillor Linda 
Cluskey and

RESOLVED: That:

(1) the Members Code of Conduct be approved as recommended and 
approved by the Audit and Governance; and

(2) the updated information regarding the Whistlebowing policy be 
noted.

111. REVENUE AND CAPITAL BUDGET PLAN 2017/18 – 2019/20 

The Cabinet considered the report of the Head of Corporate Resources 
that advised of the current forecast revenue outturn position for the 
Council for 2017/18 as at the end of January 2018 and that this forecast 
would be informed by the latest analysis of expenditure and income due to 
the Council, in addition to the progress in delivering approved savings; the 
current forecast on Council Tax and Business Rates collection for 
2017/18; and the current position of the Capital Programme with a request 
to include a number of schemes, as detailed in the report.

It was moved by Councillor Maher, seconded by Councillor Fairclough and 

RESOLVED:

That additional capital schemes, as detailed in section 7, to the Capital 
Programme, be approved. 
 
112. MEMBERSHIP OF COMMITTEES 2017/18 

RESOLVED:

That no changes to Memberships of Committees were made.

Page 10

Agenda Item 5

http://modgov.sefton.gov.uk/moderngov/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=143&MId=8904&Ver=4
http://modgov.sefton.gov.uk/moderngov/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=143&MId=8904&Ver=4


COUNCIL - THURSDAY 19TH APRIL, 2018

121

113. MATTERS DEALT WITH IN ACCORDANCE WITH RULE 46 OF 
THE SCRUTINY PROCEDURE RULES (CALL-IN AND 
URGENCY) OF THE CONSTITUTION 

The Council considered the report of the Leader of the Council setting out 
the details of an urgent matter dealt with in accordance with Rule 46 of the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee Procedure Rules in Chapter 6 of the 
Council Constitution.

RESOLVED:

That the report be noted.

114. MOTION FROM COUNCILLOR BYROM - MERSEYSIDE FIRE 
AND RESCUE SERVICE 

It was moved by Councillor Byrom, seconded by Councillor Grace:

 Merseyside Fire and Rescue Service
This Council recognises the excellent work undertaken by Merseyside Fire 
and Rescue Service in delivering community safety and prevention 
initiatives to residents and businesses across Sefton and Merseyside.

The Council, appreciates that Merseyside Fire and Rescue Service has to 
deal with a wide range of incidents, and therefore requires the resources to 
respond as speedily and effectively as possible under difficult financial 
circumstances.

MFRS through its support to National Resilience, is also required to respond 
to activities regionally, nationally and internationally;  such as response to a 
potential terrorist threat, severe weather and any incident that may have an 
impact on critical infrastructure.

MFRS also delivers interventions to the wide ranging needs of our 
communities, which includes proactive prevention activities in undertaking 
‘Safe and Well’ visits, which targets our most vulnerable residents.   These 
visits go deeper to identify and address the wider health and or lifestyle 
issues which may, further down the line, lead to an emergency incident or 
acute intervention from the NHS, Social Services, safeguarding and other 
wider public services.

MFRS has continued to evolve and reform, working in collaboration with our 
other emergency services, Health organisations, and local Authority 
partners, whilst maintaining its commitment to the delivery of our community 
safety plan.

The Government should recognise the Fire and Rescue Service is a 
unique public body that plans for risk not demand and therefore should be 
funded accordingly.

MFRS has experienced the worst budget reductions in the country, which 
has had a detrimental impact on both front line and support service staff 

Page 11

Agenda Item 5



COUNCIL - THURSDAY 19TH APRIL, 2018

122

and seen a reduction in the number of fire stations and appliances 
available to attend emergency calls. 

As MFRS budgets and physical firefighting resources continue to be cut, it 
is becoming increasingly difficult to meet local needs and address risk in 
the communities, the service is at breaking point and has sought to 
implement a programme of transformation to ensure the risk based needs 
of local communities are met, supporting the most vulnerable first.

The stark impact of the cuts to MFRS are as follows:

 2010 2017 *2020

Fire Fighters 990 680 580  

Appliances 42 26 24  

Stations 26 25 22  

*Assumed financial projected cuts until 2020

 This Council therefore calls on the Government to;
1.     Cease any further cuts to the Merseyside Fire & Rescue Authority 

budget

2.      Undertake a full risk assessment of the impact of the cuts to date  
and the degradation of the remaining service

3.      Allow MFRA the flexibility to increase Council Tax above the cap 
without the need for a County wide referendum.

4.      Allow more freedom for Fire and Rescue services to explore Income  
generation without conditions

5.     Support a fair increase to Firefighters and support staff pay rates

6.     Accept that MFRA has no free capital available to transfer to revenue     
expenditure

Finally, This Council on behalf of the citizens of Sefton and Merseyside 
wish to place on record its full hearted thanks and appreciation for the 
work undertaken by Merseyside Fire and Rescue Service, and all its Fire 
Fighters and support staff for their dedication, commitment and 
professionalism in keeping our communities safe in unprecedented times.
Following debate and in accordance with Paragraph 94 in the Council 
Constitution, the voting on the Motion was recorded and the Members of 
the Council present at the time, voted as follows:

FOR THE MOTION:

Page 12

Agenda Item 5



COUNCIL - THURSDAY 19TH APRIL, 2018

123

Councillors Ashton, Atkinson, David Barton, Bennett, Bradshaw, Burns, 
Byrom, Carr, Carragher, Linda Cluskey, Cummins, Fairclough, Grace, 
Hardy, Keith, John Kelly, John Joseph Kelly, Lappin, Daniel Lewis, Daniel 
Terence Lewis, Maher, McGuire, McKinley, Moncur, Murphy, Brenda 
O’Brien, Michael O’Brien, O’Hanlon, Page, Preece, Pugh, Pullin, 
Robinson, Roche, Roscoe, Sayers, Shaw, Spencer, Lynne Thompson, 
Tweed, Veidman, Bill Welsh and Marianne Welsh.  

ABSTENTIONS:

Councillors Bliss, Brodie-Browne, Dutton, Jamieson, Jones and Pitt.

The Mayor declared that the Motion was carried by 43 votes for to 6 
Abstentions and it was

RESOLVED:

 Merseyside Fire and Rescue Service
This Council recognises the excellent work undertaken by Merseyside Fire 
and Rescue Service in delivering community safety and prevention 
initiatives to residents and businesses across Sefton and Merseyside.

The Council, appreciates that Merseyside Fire and Rescue Service has to 
deal with a wide range of incidents, and therefore requires the resources to 
respond as speedily and effectively as possible under difficult financial 
circumstances.

MFRS through its support to National Resilience, is also required to respond 
to activities regionally, nationally and internationally;  such as response to a 
potential terrorist threat, severe weather and any incident that may have an 
impact on critical infrastructure.

MFRS also delivers interventions to the wide ranging needs of our 
communities, which includes proactive prevention activities in undertaking 
‘Safe and Well’ visits, which targets our most vulnerable residents.   These 
visits go deeper to identify and address the wider health and or lifestyle 
issues which may, further down the line, lead to an emergency incident or 
acute intervention from the NHS, Social Services, safeguarding and other 
wider public services.

MFRS has continued to evolve and reform, working in collaboration with our 
other emergency services, Health organisations, and local Authority 
partners, whilst maintaining its commitment to the delivery of our community 
safety plan.

The Government should recognise the Fire and Rescue Service is a 
unique public body that plans for risk not demand and therefore should be 
funded accordingly.

MFRS has experienced the worst budget reductions in the country, which 
has had a detrimental impact on both front line and support service staff 

Page 13

Agenda Item 5



COUNCIL - THURSDAY 19TH APRIL, 2018

124

and seen a reduction in the number of fire stations and appliances 
available to attend emergency calls. 

As MFRS budgets and physical firefighting resources continue to be cut, it 
is becoming increasingly difficult to meet local needs and address risk in 
the communities, the service is at breaking point and has sought to 
implement a programme of transformation to ensure the risk based needs 
of local communities are met, supporting the most vulnerable first.

 The stark impact of the cuts to MFRS are as follows:

 2010 2017 *2020

Fire Fighters 990 680 580  

Appliances 42 26 24  

Stations 26 25 22  

*Assumed financial projected cuts until 2020

 This Council therefore calls on the Government to;
1.      Cease any further cuts to the Merseyside Fire & Rescue Authority 

budget

2.      Undertake a full risk assessment of the impact of the cuts to date 
and the degradation of the remaining service

3.      Allow MFRA the flexibility to increase Council Tax above the cap 
without the need for a County wide referendum.

4.      Allow more freedom for Fire and Rescue services to explore Income 
generation without conditions

5.     Support a fair increase to Firefighters and support staff pay rates

6.     Accept that MFRA has no free capital available to transfer to revenue 
expenditure

Finally, This Council on behalf of the citizens of Sefton and Merseyside 
wish to place on record its full hearted thanks and appreciation for the 
work undertaken by Merseyside Fire and Rescue Service, and all its Fire 
Fighters and support staff for their dedication, commitment and 
professionalism in keeping our communities safe in unprecedented times.
Councillor Pugh requested that the Chief Executive on behalf of the 
Council write to the Chief Fire Officer in relation to his forthcoming 
retirement thanking him for his services and wishing him well for the future.

Page 14

Agenda Item 5



COUNCIL - THURSDAY 19TH APRIL, 2018

125

115. MOTION SUBMITTED BY COUNCILLOR MONCUR - SUPPORT 
FOR NATIONAL ACTION TO TACKLE OBESITY 

It was moved by Councillor Moncur, seconded by Lappin and 
unanimously:

RESOLVED:

Support for National Action to tackle obesity 
 
The Council notes that obesity is a major public health concern with the 
majority of adults in England being overweight or obese and a more than a 
third of our 10 to 11 years old being overweight or obese.

It is estimated that obesity is responsible for more than 30,000 deaths 
each year. Being overweight or obese increases the risk of a wide range 
of diseases including Type 2 diabetes, hypertension, cardiovascular 
disease and many cancers. It also negatively affects quality of life and 
mental wellbeing. 
No one is ‘immune’ to obesity, but some people are more likely to become 
overweight or obese than others. Factors of income, social deprivation and 
ethnicity all have an important impact on the likelihood of person becoming 
obese. Data from the National Child Measurement Programme shows that 
obesity levels in the most deprived 10% of children is approximately 
double that of the least deprived 10%.
Obesity places a huge strain on health and social care as well has having 
a broader impact on economic development. The estimated annual cost of 
obesity in England is around £32.5billion and if no action is taken these 
costs will increase. 

We recognise that the causes of obesity are complex. Environmental, 
physiological and behavioural factors all interrelate and play their part in 
influencing the prevalence of obesity. This is why at a local level Sefton 
has a wide range of activities to tackle obesity. This includes signing up to 
a Healthy Weight Declaration, providing an integrated healthy lifestyle and 
wellness programme, having health promoting planning policies and 
through Active Sefton and our 0 to 19 service working with schools to be 
health promoting. 

However, we feel more needs to be done by national government to 
support the efforts of local areas and we call upon the Government to lead 
on three areas of action:

Firstly Implement the Food Revolution actions.

This is a campaign led by the Jamie Oliver Food Foundation and its 
Australian partners at the Good Foundation. It is committed to inspiring 
real, meaningful, positive change in the way children access, consume 
and understand food.  

Page 15

Agenda Item 5



COUNCIL - THURSDAY 19TH APRIL, 2018

126

Working with medical experts and professionals Food Revolution has 
created a six-point plan for action which they believe governments across 
the world should be working towards as a priority. 

We welcome that the UK government has implemented the first action, 
which is the introduction of a sugary drink tax, but strongly advocate that 
the government also acts upon the other 5 actions. These are;  

1. The introduction of sugar reformulation targets to reduce excessive 
sugar in all products and have penalties for non-compliance,

2. Introduce fair marketing which would include a ban on food 
advertising targeted at children and cutting promotion of sugary 
products,

3. Making clearer labelling mandatory with clear on-pack sugar 
information, such as traffic light labelling and having restrictions on 
portion sizes for confectionary and sugary drinks,

4. Improving access to healthy food at schools for all children and 
prioritise food education in schools and

5. Providing greater education including clear national guides on what 
nutritious daily meals look like.  This would include practical 
resources for both parents and teachers and better consistency 
between the classroom and home. 

Secondly Tackle Food Poverty 
An affordable healthy diet is vital for good health. However, we know many 
people, due rising food prices, low wages and reductions in benefits, have 
an insufficient income to buy healthy food. This ‘food poverty’ trap results 
in families cutting back on fresh fruit and vegetables and buying cheap, 
sweet, fatty, salty, or processed foods that need little cooking. 

This results in poorer people having worse diets, greater levels of obesity 
and poorer health. Across the Liverpool City region many families are 
living in poverty and there is high demand on food banks. 
Whilst there is considerable work across the Liverpool City Region (LCR) 
to tackle poverty, illustrated in the commitment set out in The LCR Child 
Poverty and Life Chances Strategy, more needs to be done nationally.  
We call upon the UK government as the world’s sixth largest economy to 
do more to end food poverty. Food banks should not become a substitute 
for an effective welfare system and fair work which includes earning a 
living wage. 
Thirdly introduce a fairer and greater obesity focus of the use of 
sugar levy funding 

We welcome the government’s sugary drinks levy with the money raised to 
improve PE and sport for primary-aged pupils to encourage healthy and 
active lifestyles. 

Page 16

Agenda Item 5



COUNCIL - THURSDAY 19TH APRIL, 2018

127

The funding is to be allocated directly to primary schools, based on the 
number of pupils in years 1 to 6. There is no adjustment for deprivation. 
We believe to make the greatest impact the funding should be weighted to 
those with greatest health needs. The National Child Measurement 
Programme figures show it is the areas with greater deprivation which 
have a comparably higher proportion of children who are obese, compared 
to areas in the least deprived areas. If the funding was allocated direct to 
Local Authorities, rather than to individual schools, there would be greater 
potential to ensure resources were utilised to meet the needs across the 
local area.  

Furthermore as obesity is influenced by both energy expended and energy 
consumed to tackle obesity we would like to see the criteria for this funding 
to also include activities which will help children and families make 
healthier food and drink choices. 

In conclusion we strongly believe that more needs to be done on a 
national level to address the public health issue of obesity. 

This Council therefore calls upon Government to give healthy weight a 
greater priority by:

 Implementing all of the Food Revolution actions.

 Tackling Food Poverty and 
 Having a fairer and greater obesity focus of the use of sugar levy 

funding including allocation to Local Authorities rather than to 
individual schools

Page 17

Agenda Item 5



This page is intentionally left blank



ANNUAL COUNCIL – 17 MAY 2018

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ELECTIONS – 3 MAY 2018
SUMMARY OF ELECTION RESULTS 

AINSDALE WARD

Peter Anthony Brough Conservative Party 1891
Barbara Ann Dutton Green Party 118
Peter Forder UK Independence Party 95
Francis Hanley Labour and Co-Operative Party 1084
Judi Storer Liberal Democrats 935

Total Votes 4123
Electorate 10133
% Turnout 40.7%

BIRKDALE WARD

Iain Malcolm Brodie-
Browne

Liberal Democrats 1249

Jacqueline Gisele Maria Bliss Conservative Party 806
Daniel John Burns Labour Party 982
David William Collins Green Party 121
Derek Samuel Tasker UK Independence Party 101

Total Votes 3259
Electorate 10245
% Turnout 31.8%

BLUNDELLSANDS WARD

Samantha Marshall Labour Party 2027
Brian Frederick Dunning Liberal Democrats 269
Alison Gibbon Green Party 164
Wendy Moore Conservative Party 1166

Total Votes 3626
Electorate 9447
% Turnout 38.4%

CAMBRIDGE WARD

Michael Morris Conservative Party 1258
Terry John Durrance UK Independence Party 123
Leo Francis Evans Liberal Democrats 1192
Carla Jane Fox Green Party 110
Stephen James Jowett Labour Party 757

Total Votes 3440
Electorate 10238
% Turnout 33.6%

Page 19

Agenda Item 7



CHURCH WARD

DAREN VEIDMAN Labour Party 2018
Anne Bridget Maria Clegg Conservative Party 271
Frances Julie Eaton Liberal Democrats 99
Laurence George Rankin Green Party 237

Total Votes 2625
Electorate 9280
% Turnout 28.3%

DERBY WARD

Michael John O’Brien Labour Party 1834
David Eric Bright Conservative Party 163
Andrew John Tonkiss Liberal Democrats 94

Total Votes 2091
Electorate 9114
% Turnout 22.9%

DUKES WARD

Ronald Mathew Watson Conservative Party 1409
Joanne Barton Liberal Democrats 1275
Sahar Dehghani-Barenji Labour Party 710
Nicholas John Senior Green Party 118

Total Votes 3512
Electorate 10732
% Turnout 32.7%

FORD WARD

Elizabeth Claire Dowd Labour Party 1665
Ian George Moncur Labour Party 1659
Lynne Margaret Bold Conservative Party 181
Roy Greason Green Party 163
Adarsh Makdani Liberal Democrats 77
Pamela Teesdale Conservative Party 139
Carol Tonkiss Liberal Democrats 73

Total Votes 3957
Electorate 9299
% Turnout 23.9%

2 Councillors were elected following the resignation of Kevin Cluskey in March 2018

HARINGTON WARD

Denise Dutton Conservative Party 1820
Derek Colin Baxter Formby Residents Action Group 578
Keith William Cawdron Liberal Democrats 174
Carol Ann Richards Labour Party 1363

Total Votes 3935
Electorate 9921
% Turnout 39.7%

Page 20

Agenda Item 7



KEW WARD

Janis Mary Blackburne Labour Party 1448
Robert Michael Doyle Green Party 80
Linda Julia Gunn-Russo UK Independence Party 128
Margaret Eileen Middleton Conservative Party 563
Frederick John Weavers Liberal Democrats 1012

Total Votes 3231
Electorate 9950
% Turnout 32.5%

LINACRE WARD

Gordon Friel Labour Party 1536
Barbara Ann Bryan Socialist Labour Party 69
Benjamin Michael Carter Green Party 108
Sean Anthony Dorgan Conservative Party 106
Christine Doyle Liberal Democrats 75

Total Votes 1894
Electorate 8735
% Turnout 21.7%

LITHERLAND WARD

John Kelly Labour Party 1851
Jessamine Miles Hounslea Conservative Party 192
Ethan Alan Wykes Green Party 148

Total Votes 2191
Electorate 8840
% Turnout 24.8%

MANOR WARD

James Stephen McGinnity Labour Party 1789
Janice Blanchard Conservative Party 852
John Philip Robson Gibson Liberal Democrats 333
Michael James Walsh Green Party 143

Total Votes 3117
Electorate 10009
% Turnout 31.1%

MEOLS WARD

Daniel George Lewis Liberal Democrats 1466
Alwynne Ann Cartmell Green Party 118
Janet Catherine Harrison Labour Party 789
Jordon Thomas Shandley Conservative Party 1141

Total Votes 3514
Electorate 10085
% Turnout 34.8%

Page 21

Agenda Item 7



MOLYNEUX WARD

Anthony Carr Labour Party 1736
Marcus Julian Romaine 
Bleasdale

Conservative Party 327

Michael Leslie Carter Green Party 103
Jack Colbert 440
Terence Kenneth Doyle Liberal Democrats 99
Peter Johnston Harper UK Independence Party 151

Total Votes 2856
Electorate 10174
% Turnout 28.1%

NETHERTON AND ORRELL WARD

Ian Ralph Maher Labour Party 1976
Patricia Ann Gaskell UK Independence Party 121
Maureen Grainger Green Party 118
Paul Anthony Huckstepp Conservative Party 182

Total Votes 2397
Electorate 9590
% Turnout 25.0%

NORWOOD WARD

Mhairi Macleod Johnstone 
Doyle

Labour Party 1779

Peter Blake Liberal Democrats 1122
Peter Noel Gregson UK Independence Party 81
David Andrew McIntosh Green Party 122
Michael James Shaw Conservative Party 506

Total Votes 3610
Electorate 10452
% Turnout 34.5%

PARK WARD

June Frances Burns Labour Party 1611
Kenneth Michael Hughes Conservative Party 534
Jennifer Robertston Liberal Democrats 241
John Gerard Short Independent 744

Total Votes 3130
Electorate 9832
% Turnout 31.8%

RAVENMEOLS WARD 

Nina Samantha Killen Labour Party 1551
Maria Bennett Formby Residents Action Group 1288
Gemma Michelle Peace Conservative Party 781
Mark Senior Liberal Democrats 159

Total Votes 3779
Electorate 9661
% Turnout 39.1%

Page 22

Agenda Item 7



ST OSWALD WARD

Carla Maria Thomas Labour Party 1721
Kim Bryan Socialist Labour Party 119
Peter Papworth Conservative Party 218

Total Votes 2058
Electorate 8408
% Turnout 24.5%

SUDELL WARD

Yvonne Sayers Labour Party 1645
Thomas Henry Hughes Conservative Party 488
Stuart David Mason Liberal Democrats 214
Michael O’Hanlon Independent 691
Marian Elaine Wykes Green Party 70

Total Votes 3108
Electorate 10071
% Turnout 30.9%

VICTORIA WARD

Christine Janet Grace Labour Party 2369
Paul Martyn Barber Conservative Party 469
Andrew Roy Donegan Green Party 163
Hannah Jane Gee Liberal Democrats 665

Total Votes 3666
Electorate 10818
% Turnout 33.9%

Margaret Carney
Returning Officer

Page 23

Agenda Item 7



This page is intentionally left blank



ANNUAL COUNCIL – 17 MAY 2017

REPORT OF THE LEADER OF THE COUNCIL

APPOINTMENT OF THE CABINET AND DEPUTY LEADER OF THE COUNCIL

MOTION

RESOLVED

That it be noted that the Cabinet comprising of the Members indicated below was 
appointed by the Leader of the Council at the Council meeting held on 21 May 2015 
for a four year term of office or until such time as their term of office expires, they are 
removed by the Leader or for any of the reasons set out in Paragraph 4 (a) to (c) of 
Chapter 5 in the Constitution;

CABINET (9)

Portfolio Member

Leader of the Council Councillor Maher

Cabinet Member – Adult Social Care Councillor Cummins

Cabinet Member – Children, Schools and 
Safeguarding

Councillor John Joseph Kelly

Cabinet Member – Communities and 
Housing

Councillor Hardy

Cabinet Member – Health and Wellbeing Councillor Moncur

Cabinet Member – Locality Services and 
Deputy Leader of the Council

Councillor Fairclough

Cabinet Member – Planning and Building 
Control

Councillor Veidman

Cabinet Member – Regeneration and 
Skills

Councillor Atkinson

Cabinet Member – Regulatory, 
Compliance and Corporate Services

Councillor Lappin

Councillor Maher
Leader of the Council

Page 25

Agenda Item 9



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	7 Election Results - 3 May 2018
	9 Cabinet and Deputy Leader of the Council

